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Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma

I.
INTRODUCTION
The Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma (hereinafter referred to as “OOTRS”), $13.1 Billion fund, is seeking, through a competitive bid process, proposals from qualified firms to provide value added real estate investment management in an open-end fund or other appropriate structure.


OOTRS Oklahoma was created by an act of the Oklahoma Legislature in 1943 after citizens amended the state constitution allowing the creation of a public retirement program for educators. OOTRS began operations on July 1, 1943.  Membership in OTRS is available to all public school employees working half-time or more.  Employees of more than 600 local school districts, career technology schools, public colleges and universities are enrolled as members of the OTRS. As of June 30, 2013, OTRS had 161,960 members (89,333 active contributing, 18,046 inactive and 54,581 retired members).

The mission of OTRS is to provide retirement benefits to Oklahoma's educators. The Board of Trustees and OTRS staff oversees its administration to ensure adequate funds are maintained to meet the financial obligations of the entire membership. In directing the investments of OTRS funds, the Board seeks to maximize gains, minimize losses and protect the Trust. The staff stands ready to assist OTRS members in any matter pertaining to accruing benefits, and planning for and enjoying a well-earned retirement.

The investment consulting firm employed by OOTRS is Gregory W Group.  Inquiries regarding this RFP will be referred to Mr. Doug Anderson, via email only.  His email address is danderson@gregorywgroup.com.  The actuarial consulting firm for OOTRS is Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company.  OOTRS has an assumed interest rate of 8.0%.  The investment portfolio currently consists of:

· sixteen (16) actively managed domestic equity portfolios; 

· eight (8) actively managed non-U.S. equity portfolios;

· seven (7) actively managed domestic fixed income portfolios;
· three (3) actively managed master limited partnership portfolios;
· two (2) actively managed private equity portfolios;

· two (2) actively managed fixed income portfolios;

· three (3) actively managed real estate portfolios;

The System’s current target asset allocation, as of December 31, 2013, is as follows:

	Asset Class
	Target Allocation

	All Cap/Large Cap
	17%

	Mid Cap
	13%

	Small Cap
	10%

	Total Domestic Equity
	40%

	Large Cap International Equity
	11.5%

	Small Cap International Equity
	6%

	Total International Equity
	17.5%

	Core Fixed Income
	17.5%

	High Yield Bonds
	6%

	MLP's
	7%

	Private Equity
	5%

	Real Estate
	7%

	Total Non-Core Assets
	25%


The board has determined they wish to increase our Real Estate allocation from its current 4% to 7%.

II.
SERVICES DESIRED
The purpose of this RFP is to solicit proposals from qualified firms to render value added real estate investment management.  The OOTRS Board has launched a search to increase it’s allocation to real estate.  OOTRS is seeking an open-end vehicle or other appropriate structure for the investment of assets in this area.  In addition to portfolio management, the selected Advisor will be expected to:

A. Provide educational or training sessions for the Board and/or OOTRS staff representatives on real estate investments.
B. Provide the staff with direct access to any available investment research and group publications produced by the Advisor’s firm.  
C. Prepare special analyses as requested by the OOTRS staff to define goals and objectives, monitor portfolio risk, or for other purposes deemed valuable by the OOTRS staff in the management of the real estate portfolio.

D. Attend Board and/or Investment Committee meetings as requested.  

E. Maintain regular communications with the OOTRS staff, which would include frequent telephone consultations as required by the Advisor and/or staff in order to effectively accomplish all of the services required by this RFP. 

F. Calculate and report actual portfolio performance on at least a quarterly basis.

III.
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS
Respondents to the RFP must meet all of the following minimum qualifications and requirements to be given further consideration.  FAILURE TO SATISFY THE FOLLOWING WILL RESULT IN THE REJECTION OF THE PROPOSAL.
The firm must certify in writing that it meets all of the following minimum qualifications.  Such certification must include evidence of how each qualification is met and must be signed by an authorized member of your firm.

A. Offeror must be an SEC-registered investment advisor or exempt from such registration (Form ADV or disclosure of the nature of the exemption must be submitted);

B. Offeror must have at least three major tax exempt clients; 
C. Offeror must have at least five year’s experience providing the specified services.  The experience qualification may be met either at the level of the organization or from assigned personnel who qualify from experience at a prior firm. 
IV. Timeline for Consideration


January 24, 2014, 4:00 pm CDT

Manager Questions Due to OTRS




Questions about the RFP should be





 submitted to:





 danderson@gregorywgroup.com
February 14, 2014, 4:00 pm CDT

Responses Due to Managers





Responses to all questions will be 






distributed to all parties who submit






questions.

February 14, 2014, 4:00 pm CDT

RFP Responses Due

V. Requirements for Submission

A. Proposals shall be no longer than fifty (50)  pages in length and shall include:
1. A statement of minimum qualifications 
2. Proposal questionnaire
3. Fee Proposal
B. Submit five (5) hard copies of proposal and one (1) electronic version by 4:00 pm CST on February 14th. Submissions should be mailed to:



 Teachers Retirement System of Oklahoma
Attn: Grant Rohlmeier

P.O. Box 53524
OKC, OK 73152-3524
Grant.Rohlmeier@OTRS.ok.gov
Gregory Group

Attn: Douglas Anderson

320 S Boston Ave #2200

Tulsa, OK 74103
danderson@gregorywgroup.onmicrosoft.com
Real Estate Management 

Value Added 

Management Questionnaire
Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma

Investment Management Questionnaire

Real Estate

I.

Organization

	Firm Name:
	

	Contact:
	

	Title:
	

	Contact Address:
	

	
	

	Contact Telephone:
	

	Contact Fax:
	

	Contact Email:  
	

	Company Website:
	

	
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Name (print):
	

	Date:
	


1. How long has your firm and, if applicable, your parent company, been active in the real estate investment business?

2. Please provide a brief history of the firm and the team of real estate advisors.

3. How many people work at the firm full time? How many are investment professionals?
4. Please provide an organizational chart that shows the persons who would be involved in providing the services required by this RFP and members of the team that you would dedicate to the Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma and their roles in implementing the real estate program.

5. Please provide a schedule detailing the amount of ownership in the firm and, if applicable, the parent company, by employees and other parties, and the timing of any substantive changes during the past 10 years. Please list current percentages owned by employees in excess of one percent (1%) and any options, warrants, or other rights held by any employees that would permit the holder to acquire five percent (5%) or more of the firm—severally and individually.

6. Has FINRA, the SEC, or any other regulator ever audited your firm and, if applicable, your parent company? If yes, please describe the reason for audit and outcome.

7. Please disclose any litigation, complaints, arbitration, or other disputes involving your firm and, if applicable, your parent company, and/or your employees in the past 10 years. Please include the nature of the action and the outcome.

8. What bonding and/or liability insurance does your firm maintain? Please describe the level of coverage for errors and omissions/fiduciary and professional liability insurance.

9. What is the ratio of investment professionals to clients? What is the ratio of investment professionals to holdings? What is the ratio of client service personnel to clients? 

10. Does your firm have dedicated value added real estate-focused research professionals? 

11. Does your firm intend to launch any investment products or exit any business lines during the next two years? If it does, please describe such plans.

12. Does your firm and, if applicable, your parent company, engage in other lines of business besides investment management or advisement of real estate portfolios? If yes, what is the fraction of assets under management that real estate product represents in the overall organization? What is the product’s percentage of revenue and profit in the overall organization? Please describe in detail any internal/external potential or perceived conflicts of interest and how you resolve them. 

13. Explain any potential for conflicts of interest your firm would have in servicing OTRS account. 
14. Please provide a copy of your code of ethics.
15. Does the firm or members of the firm invest their money in the investments recommended to clients?  Please explain.
16. Describe your plans for managing the future growth of your firm in terms of:
a. Total number of accounts that will be accepted.
b. Total assets that will be accepted.
c. Plans for additions to professional staff and approximate timing in relation to anticipated growth in the number of accounts or assets.
17. Does your firm act as a fiduciary when serving as a real estate investment manager?

18. Does your firm or parent company run or have an interest in a real estate brokerage firm?  If yes, how does your firm manage potential conflicts of interest?

19. Does your firm or parent company run or have an interest in a property management firm?  If yes, how does your firm manage potential conflicts of interest?

20. Does your firm have a disaster recovery plan in place? Does the manager have alternative office space and systems available to permit it to continue to deliver the services described in this RFP and to preserve all associated electronic and written records, in case of a disaster? Describe your firm’s disaster recovery plan.

II.

Clients

1. Investment management services offered as of 12/31/2013.  The total should represent all strategies and include all assets under management:  (Complete all that apply)

	
	Discretionary Separate Accounts
	Non-Discretionary Separate Accounts
	Commingled Funds
	Total

	
	# of accts.
	Market Value ($mm)
	# of accts.
	Market Value ($mm)
	# of accts.
	Market Value ($mm)
	# of accts.
	Market Value ($mm)

	
	
	Gross
	Net
	
	Gross
	Net
	
	Gross
	Net
	
	Gross
	Net

	2013
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2012
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2011
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2010
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2009
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


2. Please include the following information for the firm’s commingled funds currently under management.

	Name of Fund
	$ (M) Gross Size
	Open or Closed-end
	Investment Strategy
	Date Formed
	Legal

Life

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


3. Please indicate the number of Open-end vs. Close-end Commingled funds your firm has under management as of 12/31/2013.

4. Provide a breakdown of Commingled Funded Tax Exempt Accounts under management as of 12/31/2013.

	
	                               Total Firm

	
	Number
	Gross Market Value ($mm)

	Employee-Benefit Funds
	
	

	  Corporate
	
	

	  Multi-Employer
	
	

	  Public
	
	

	Endowments & Foundations
	
	

	Other:
	
	

	Total Accounts
	
	


5. Provide a breakdown of all (Commingled Funded & Separately- Managed) Tax-Exempt Accounts under management as of 12/31/2013.

	
	                                Total Firm

	
	Number
	Gross Market Value ($mm)

	Employee-Benefit Funds
	
	

	  Corporate
	
	

	  Multi-Employer
	
	

	  Public
	
	

	Endowments & Foundations
	
	

	Other: Insurance
	
	

	Total Accounts
	
	


6. Please provide details of all of the firm’s accounts that have invested or can invest in value added real estate. (Commingled Funded & Separately- Managed) 
7. Provide a list of investors that have allocated money to the proposed fund in the past two years (1/1/2012 through 12/31/2013).  If you cannot disclose the investor’s name, please state as Public Fund A or Corporate Plan B, etc.

	Name of Investor
	New or Existing
	Amount
	Quarter/Year

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


8. Provide a list of investors that have exited or requested to completely exit the fund in the two past years (1/1/2012 through 12/31/2013).  If you cannot disclose the investor’s name, please state as Public Fund A or Corporate Plan B, etc.  Do not include investors that receive routine income withdrawals.

	Name of Investor
	Amount
	Reason for Redemption
	Quarter/Year

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


9. List references for three (3) value added real estate clients with real estate capital commitments of $25 million or more for whom the primary consultant and principal assistant to be assigned to the OOTRS account have provided real estate management services.

10. Is there a particular size or threshold (client or dollars) at which the firm might find it difficult to continue to execute the value added investment strategy? Please indicate the minimum and maximum amount of assets the firm can effectively manage and the available capacity for new assignments.

III.

Investment Process

1. Please describe the proposed fund’s investment philosophy and strategy.  How does the management team add value to existing real estate properties?  New properties?
2. What is the proposed fund’s minimum investment?

3. How are investment decisions approved? If there is an investment committee, what is its composition? 

4. What aspects of your investment process do you believe differentiate you from your competitors?

5. Investment Vehicle (please check appropriate box): 

	REIT (Private)
	
	Group Trust
	

	REIT (Public)
	
	
Insurance Company Separate Account
	

	Limited Partnership
	
	Other (Please specify)
	


6. Fund Statistics ($ Millions):

	Gross Market Value
	$
	Entity Level Investments
	$

	Gross Market Value less JV
	$
	Joint Ventures
	$

	    Partners Interest
	$
	Portfolio Debt/Rate
	$/%

	Net Market Value
	$
	Average Age of Properties
	

	Net Market Value less JV
	$
	Inception Date
	

	    Partners Interest
	$
	Number of Participants
	

	Cash & Short-term Investments
	$
	Number of Investments
	

	Uninvested Commitments
	$
	Avg. Annual Asset Turnover Ratio
	%

	Return Target - Nominal
	%
	% Ownership of Five Largest Participants
	%

	Return Target - Real
	%
	Stabilized Portfolio Implied Cap Rate (%) (Year 1 Forecasted NOI  divided by Current Market Value)
	%

	Income Return Target
	%
	Entire Portfolio Implied Cap Rate (%) (Year 1 Forecasted NOI divided by Current Market Value)
	%

	Since Inception Return:  
	Gross  %
	Net  %


7. For each section below, please indicate what percentage of the given categories are representative of the gross market value (excluding JV partners interest) for the proposed fund’s assets.  Each section should total 100% and dollars are in millions.  

PROPERTY TYPE ($000s)

	Office
	
	
	Age of Prop.
	Yrs. In Fund
	Retail
	
	
	Age of Prop.
	Yrs. In Fund

	High Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Super-Regional Mall
	%
	$
	
	

	Mid Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Regional Mall
	%
	$
	
	

	Low Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Community Shopping Center
	%
	$
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Neighborhood Shopping Center
	%
	$
	
	

	CBD Office
	
	
	
	
	Convenience Center
	%
	$
	
	

	High Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Strip Commercial Development
	%
	$
	
	

	Mid Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Outlet/Off-Price Center
	%
	$
	
	

	Low Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Retail Total
	%
	$
	
	

	Office Total
	%
	$
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Industrial
	
	
	
	

	Apartments
	
	
	
	
	Multi-Tenant Business Park
	%
	$
	
	

	Garden
	%
	$
	
	
	Warehouse/Distribution
	%
	$
	
	

	High Rise
	%
	$
	
	
	Research & Development
	%
	$
	
	

	Apartments Total
	%
	$
	
	
	Industrial Total
	%
	$
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Land
	
	
	
	
	Hospitality
	
	
	
	

	Unimproved
	%
	$
	N/A
	
	Hotel
	%
	$
	
	

	Timber
	%
	$
	
	
	Motel
	%
	$
	
	

	Agriculture
	%
	$
	
	
	Resort
	%
	$
	
	

	Land Total
	%
	$
	
	
	Hospitality Total
	%
	$
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Other Total
	%
	$
	
	


	
	Entire Cap Rate
	Stabilized Cap Rate
	Stabilized Gross Market Value

	Office
	%
	%
	

	Apartment
	%
	%
	

	Retail
	%
	%
	

	Industrial
	%
	%
	

	Hospitality (under development)
	%
	%
	

	Other (Please Indicate)
	-
	-
	-




GEOGRAPHIC REGION ($M)

	East
	%
	$
	
	West
	%
	$

	

	Midwest
	%
	$
	
	South
	%
	$

	

	Other
	%
	$
	
	
	
	

	Canada
	%
	$
	
	
	
	

	Non-U.S.
	%
	$
	
	
	
	




GROSS ASSET VALUE (in millions) OF THE INVESTMENTS IN THE FUND (i.e. if the fund has a 50% interest in a $150 million asset that investment should be included in the $100 - $150 million category.  Similarly, if the fund has a $100 million investment in five different assets, each asset should be assigned a value, if they can be individually marketed.)

	<$1
	%
	$
	
	$20-$50
	%
	$

	$1-$5
	%
	$
	
	$50-$100
	%
	$

	$5-$10
	%
	$
	
	$100-150
	%
	$

	$10-$20
	%
	$
	
	>$150
	%
	$




INVESTMENT LIFE CYCLES STAGES ($M)

	Pre-Development
	%
	$
	
	Fully/Substantially Leased (>80%)
	%
	$

	Development
	%
	$
	
	Rehabilitation
	%
	$

	Leasing
	%
	$
	
	Forward Commitments
	%
	$

	
	
	
	
	Other (Value-added)
	%
	$




INVESTMENT FINANCIAL STRUCTURES ($M)

	Unleveraged Equity Ownership
	%
	$

	Leveraged Equity Ownership
	%
	$

	Equity/Mortgage Combination
	%
	$

	Hybrid Debt
	%
	$

	Purchase Options
	%
	$

	Convertible Debt
	%
	$

	Conventional Mortgage
	%
	$

	Mezzanine Debt
	%
	$

	Other (Explain)
	%
	$




PROPERTY LIST



Please attach as Appendix A, a list and general detail of all properties in the fund as of 12/31/2013. For the 10 largest properties, please include: name of property, location (city, state), property type, acquisition price, acquisition year, equity ownership percentage, leverage amount (if any), debt rate, occupancy %, square footage or units (if multi-family), current market value, implied cap rate, last year NOI, year over year NOI growth,  date of last external appraisal, date of next external appraisal, year built/renovated (renovations greater than 10% of value), and whether property management is internal or external to the firm.

Please attach as Appendix B, a summary of your investment strategy, term structure, private placement memorandum, as well as any general marketing materials you may have for this fund.
Please attach as Appendix C, a copy of the contract or agreement that OOTRS would have to sign.
List all key investment personnel who are involved in the fund’s investment decision-making process.  Highlight the person(s) who are responsible for the fund.  In one table include their name; title; product responsibility; location; years of real estate investment experience, years of this particular real estate strategy experience; total years with firm; and total investment experience overall.   As Appendix D, please provide biographies for all key investment professionals, including professionals responsible for this mandate.

	Name
	Title
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Key:

1 = Product Responsibility (Number of Funds Managed: C = Open-End Commingled, S = Separately Managed Accounts)

2 = Office location

3 = Years of real estate investment experience

4 = Years of core real estate strategy experience

5 = Total years with firm, includes years with predecessor organization

6 = Total investment experience overall

8. List in detail the proposed fund’s portfolio manager’s other duties and accounts. Please state the date that the portfolio manager began primary portfolio management duties with the fund.  Also discuss in detail the portfolio manager’s compensation structure as it relates or ties to the fund.  Please state in percentages, the time the portfolio manager spends on this particular Fund and what other duties he/she may have.

9. Describe your firm’s back-up procedures in the event the key investment professional assigned to this account should leave the firm or be transferred to other accounts or duties.

10. Portfolios are managed by a(n) (Check only one)

	
	Team
	
	Dedicated Team

	
	Individual portfolio manager
	
	Portfolio mgr. W/ back-up


11. In the following table, provide the total number of investment professionals dedicated to the management of this commingled fund as of 12/31/2013.  Provide additions and terminations by year for all investment professionals directly associated with the products.
	
	Additions
	Terminations/Departures

	
	Port. Mgrs
	Acq.
	Asset Mgmt.
	Research/Other
	Inv. Comm.
	Total
	Port. Mgrs.
	Acq.
	Asset Mgmt.
	Research/Other
	Inv. Comm.
	Total

	2013
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2012
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2011
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2010
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2009
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	Total Investment Professional Count

	
	Port. Mgrs
	Acq.
	Asset Mgmt.
	Research/Other
	Inv. Comm.
	Total

	2013
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2012
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2011
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2010
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2009
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	




Do not double count any professionals.  For example, if a Portfolio Manager also conducts research, the more senior position applies and he/she should be counted once.

12. Specifically address the following as they relate to your firm’s value added fund:

a. Is there a contribution or redemption queue for the Fund? If yes, please indicate the queue amount(s), how many investors are in the queue and how long is the queue anticipated to remain?  What is the average length of time for investors currently in the queue awaiting redemptions?

b. What is the fund’s target dividend distribution to investors? Has the Fund reduced or suspended this dividend. If so, please provide details such as when the dividend was reduced, by how much, and how long is the reduction expected to last.

c. Does the Fund have any forward commitments? If so, please provide a list of the forward commitments including the how much the original commitment amount (Net & Gross), current market value and the expected closing date. Are these commitments being valued/impacting the Fund’s current performance? If so, please explain this valuation process.

d. As is relates to debt, is the Fund currently in violation of any lender covenants or has the Fund exceeded its own maximum leverage target?  Are there any assets that the fund defaulted on and/or written the value to zero? If so, please provide details.

13. Specifically address the following as they relate to your firm’s commingled fund:

a. Research Process:  Include a discussion of the sources of your research (internal and external) and where research is conducted.

b. Key Decision Makers:  Detail at each stage of your decision making/portfolio construction process who the key professionals are.

c. Acquisitions Process:  Describe how acquisitions are allocated to this fund.  Please state your rotation policy with competing strategies/capital.  Also detail the current level (dollar amount, activity, etc…) of competing capital for this fund (other core funds, core separate accounts, etc…).

d. Cash Management: Describe the fund’s process of cash management and redemption policies.  In regards to redemption policies, are in-kind distributions ever permitted?  

e. Capacity: What is the fund’s current capacity and timeline to invest new capital?  Describe in detail the queue process, if one exists, to get invested in the fund.

f. Dividend Policy: Describe in detail the process an investor must go through in order to receive dividends on a quarterly basis and whether or not income dividends have preference over other redemption requests.

g. Marking Debt to Market: Describe in detail your firm’s current policy on marking debt to market.  Include specifics on your firm’s current procedures for marking debt to market and a table showing the start date of the first quarter you began marking debt to market and what impact this has had on your performance for each quarter.  Do you mark your portfolio debt and property debt to market?

	Quarter
	Debt Mark-to-Market Adjustment
	Impact on the Value Added  Fund Gross Returns

	1 q 2004
	
	

	2 q 2004
	
	

	3 q 2004
	
	

	4 q 2004
	
	

	1 q 2005
	
	

	2 q 2005
	
	

	3 q 2005
	
	

	4 q 2005
	
	

	1 q 2006
	
	

	2 q 2006
	
	

	3 q 2006
	
	

	4 q 2006
	
	

	1 q 2007
	
	

	2 q 2007
	
	

	3 q 2007
	
	

	4 q 2007
	
	

	1 q 2008
	
	

	2 q 2008
	
	

	3 q 2008
	
	

	4 q 2008
	
	

	1 q 2009
	
	

	2 q 2009
	
	

	3 q 2009
	
	

	4 q 2009
	
	

	1 q 2010
	
	

	2 q 2010
	
	

	3 q 2010
	
	

	4 q 2010
	
	

	1 q 2011
	
	

	2 q 2011
	
	

	3 q 2011
	
	

	4 q 2011
	
	

	1 q 2012
	
	

	2 q 2012
	
	

	3 q 2012
	
	

	4 q 2012
	
	

	1 q 2013
	
	

	2 q 2013
	
	

	3 q 2013
	
	

	4 q 2013
	
	


h. Limitations: List each limitation of the fund for each of the following items and explain each one: cash limit, leverage limit (portfolio and property caps), geographic limits, property type limits, joint venture limits, etc.  Are there other limits to the fund that are in addition to the ones listed above?  If so, please state them here.

	Number of Holdings
	

	Permitted property types
	

	Property type concentration
	

	Regional concentration
	

	Single property exposure
	

	Single market exposure
	

	Fund/Property leverage 
	

	Non-stabilized properties
	

	Development
	

	Cash balance
	

	Joint ventures
	

	Forward commitments
	

	REIT exposure
	


i. Risk Management:  How does your firm define, monitor and control risk?

j. Appraisal Process: Describe the appraisal policy and process for this fund.

k. Sell Discipline:  What is your firm’s hold/sell policy?

l. Economic Diversification:  How does your firm view economic diversification as it relates to this fund?  Please attach any supporting analysis as it relates to the diversification of this fund.

m. Advisory Board: Does the fund have an Advisory Board?  If so, describe in detail who sits on the Advisory Board, what the role of the Advisory Board is and what specific duties it holds, including any voting rights.  Please include Bios of the members of the Advisory Board.
14. Describe your firm’s capabilities and process for providing asset and property management services for acquired assets.  Does your firm use internal or third-party property managers for such assets?  If internal, is there an arm’s length bid process?  How frequently and specifically do you evaluate property management and what metrics are used?
15. What percentage of senior investment professional’s time is currently spent managing assets in the portfolio vs. acquiring new assets?

16. Describe the fund’s income distribution policy.  Is all income distributed back to investors?

17. Describe the cash distribution process; has the fund at any time stopped paying cash distributions to investors?  If so, please describe in detail when and during what period of time, and under what circumstances.

18. Provide a current debt maturity schedule and the following line of credit information: line of credit size and current interest rate; when the line of credit is scheduled to expire or be refinanced; and how much do you anticipate the new line of credit will be upon refinancing?  Break out the debt maturity schedule by: property mortgages; private notes; and line of credit. 

a. Please provide a breakdown of the debt in the portfolio.  What percent is supported exclusively by a single property, what percent is cross collateralized by other properties in the fund, what percent is debt at the fund level?

b. What percent of the existing debt on the portfolio is fixed rate?  What is the average interest rate on fixed rate debt?  On floating rate debt?

19. Provide a detailed debt service schedule of all debt associated with this fund, including how all outstanding debt instruments will be retired and over what period of time.

20. What are the forward purchase commitments of the fund?  Please list all commitments by property type, MSA, acquisition cost, the time the commitment was made, and the projected time of closing (quarter and year is sufficient).

21. If this is an existing fund, please describe how asset values have been written down over the past 24 months and by what percentage.  Do you anticipate a further mark-down going into 2013-2014 and if so, how much?   

22. Co-Investment: Indicate how co-investment works within the fund – specifically: identify the sources of the co-investment monies (personal net worth, syndication, financing, affiliated or third parties); how many people in the organization contribute personal money to co-investment opportunities, and describe the relationship between co-investment and sharing of carried interest.
23. Describe the governance structure of the fund, both from a strategic “life of the fund” perspective and from a day-to-day operations perspective.  Focus here on how decisions are made, and specifically the composition, role and responsibilities of various governing bodies (e.g., Board of Directors, Investment Committee, and Advisory Board, others if applicable).

24. Review and describe the rights set within the partnership, with particular attention to: removal rights, transfer rights, exclusivity, etc.
IV.

Performance

Please provide historical rate of return information as of 12/31/2013 by quarter and for year-end for each commingled fund detailed in Section III.  Be sure to include an electronic file (Excel preferred) with returns broken out in the following format:

	Year
	Quarter
	Gross

Income
	Net

Income
	Gross Appreciation
	Net Appreciation
	Gross

Total Return
	Net

Total Return
	Percent

Leverage
	Gross (w/debt) Market Value

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


V.

Reporting Information

1. Please provide examples of annual and quarterly investor reporting. 

2. What information do you typically disclose to investors in your commingled accounts? Please be specific.

3. Please describe the process for analyzing real estate market trends, including capabilities for reporting and tracking international trends and influences. 

4. Please describe in detail the type and frequency of research that would be provided and the media through which it would be provided.  Does your firm provide research reports other than those specifically requested by the client?  If so, please describe such reports. 

5. Please describe how benchmarks and peer universes are chosen or developed and describe how they are typically employed for clients.
6. Provide the name(s) of the auditing and law firms you use.
7. Please provide the names of private placement agents your firm has used/paid over the past three years.

8. How would a ban on the use of placement agents affect client portfolios, your investment process, and your business model?

9. Would your firm agree to fully disclose all placement agent relationships your firm encounters under the management of the portfolio?

10. Advisors seeking to do business with OOTRS are required to disclose all third party compensation agreements in connection with the maintenance or procurement of business with the OOTRS.  Responses to this questionnaire must include a disclosure as to any third party compensation agreements. If a contract is awarded, the agreement will contain a covenant for continuing disclosure in form and substance as directed periodically by the OOTRS.
VI.

Miscellaneous

1. Please describe the research and other technical resources, including online databases and web-based analytical tools that you make available to your clients.

2. Describe the services of your organization that distinguish your firm from your competitors.
VI.
Fund Term & Fees

1. Please provide a detailed fee structure for an open-end commingled fund at a commitment level at $25 million, $50 million, $75 million, and $100 million.  

2. Describe how fees are determined for this product.  Are fees a function of the expected excess return of the fund?

3. Provide a detailed description of your fee schedule (include fees for both commingled vehicles as well as for separate accounts, if available).  Be sure to specify all fee components (asset-based fees, transaction/deal fees, performance fees, etc.)  Also, describe any entry/exit fees.  All fees must be disclosed in this RFP response.

4. How often is liquidity available to investors?  (e.g. monthly, quarterly, etc.)  Detail the specific liquidity features of this product.

5. Describe how long you anticipate your firm will take to invest a new commitment.  

Specific attention will be paid to: 
Investment Process:  20%


Appropriate Portfolio Structure:  20%

Prior Fund Returns:  10%

Fees/Compensation Structure:  20%

Ownership Structure:  15%

Personnel:   
15%

Total:  100%
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